#### Hampshire County - 20/20 Perfect Vision i2 Document Detail Report

Current datetime: 9/11/2011 6:13:05 PM

Doc#	Document Type	Town	Book/Page	File Date	Consideration
16737	CERTIFICATE		03237/294	08/22/1988	

#### Property-Street Address and/or Description

**CLARK AVE** 

#### Grantors

CLARK AVENUE RESIDENTIAL CONDOMINIUM, CLARK AVENUE CONDOMINIUM ASSOCIATION, FIFTY-TWO FIFTY-THREE CLARK AVENUE ASSOCIATES INC

#### Grantees

ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION & amp; BY-LAWS

#### References-Book/Pg Description Recorded Year

03242/80 6D 1988, 03245/107 6D 1988, 03258/300 AFF 1988, 03265/248 6D 1988, 03265/246 AMEND 1988, 03271/209 PR 1988, 03271/210 PR 1988, 03284/33 PR 1988, 03285/144 6D 1988, 03289/214 PR 1988, 03296/289 CERT 1988, 03303/320 PR 1988, 03442/35 6D 1989, 03809/119 CERT 1991, 03809/123 AMEND 1991, 03646/33 6D 1990, 03627/129 6D 1990, 03638/155 6D 1990, 03638/172 6D 1990, 03638/206 6D 1990, 03638/189 6D 1990, 03746/146 CERT 1991, 03575/250 6D 1990

#### Registered Land Certificate(s)-Cert# Book/Pg

SEE BOOK 3245 BOOK 3245 BOOK 3245 PAGE 207		SEE BUOK 3638 SEE BUOK 3638 PAGE 172 PAGE 206 19	3EE BOOK 3746 PAGE 146	
SEE 300 BOOK 300	. <b>B</b> '	CLARK AVENUE RESIDENTIAL CONDOMINIUM  ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION AND  Y-LAWS OF CLARK AVENUE CONDOMINIUM ASSOCIATION	PAGE	
SEE 3265 Unit BOOK 248 PAGE 248	ARTICLE I  1. 2. 3. 4.	PLAN OF UNIT OWNERSHIP  The Condominium Association Applicability of By-Laws Office	4 4 5 6	
SEE PART. RELEASE  Book Page	1. 2. 3. 4.	Number and Term Removal Vacancies Regular Meetings Special Meetings Waiver of Notice Quorum of the Board of Managers Compensation; Fidelity Bonds Liability of the Board of Members Certification, re: Status of Board Action of Board Without a Meeting Powers and Duties	6 8 9 10 10 11 11 11 11 12 13 14	
SEE BOOK 388  PAGE 144  PAGE 144	2. 3. 4. 5.	UNIT OWNERS  Annual Meetings Place of Meetings Notice of Meetings Adjournment of Meetings Order of Business Voting and Other Action by Unit Owners Majority of Unit Owners Quorum Majority Vote	19 20 20 20 21 21 21 22 22 23	
SEE BOOK 3269 16 PAGE 2/4	ARTICLE IV  1. 2. 3. 4. 5.	OFFICERS  Designation Election of Officers Removal of Officers President Treasurer	23 23 24 24 24	
SEE PART. RELEASE BO PAR 3303 PAR PAGE 320 UNIT C	E	SEE BOOK <u>3 809</u> PAGE <u>123</u>		
SEE BOOK 343 SE	3646			

# 80083237 PAGE 0295

		25
6.	Clerk Agreement, Contracts, Deeds, Checks, Etc.	25
* <b>-</b>	Compensation of Officers	25
8.	Compensation of officer	
•	•	
ARTICLE V	NOTICES	
		26
1.	Service of Notice	26
2.	Waiver	
•		
someote VT	OPERATION OF THE PROPERTY	
ARTICLE VI		26
1.	Common Expenses and Common Charges	30
_	payment of Common Charges	31
<del>_</del> ·		31
<del>-</del> -	nation to payment of Common Charges	
5.	Foreclosure of Liens for Unpaid	32
<b>_</b>	Common Charges	32
6.	Statement of Common Charges	
7.	Abatement and Enjoinment of Violations	32
	by Unit Owners	33
8.	Maintenance and Repairs	34
9.	postrictions and Rules and Regulacions	_ 35
10.	Improvements to Common Elements	36
11.	Right of Access	37
12.	Electricity	37
13.	Water Charges and Sewer Rents	38
14.	Insurance	
15.	Repair or Reconstruction After Fire or	47
	Other Casualty	
16.	Additions, Alterations or Improvements by	50
	Unit Owners	52
17.	Examination of Books	
ARTICLES VII	MORTGAGES	
		€.
1.	Notice to Board	53 53
2.	Notice of Unpaid Common Charges	53
3.	Notice of Default	53
2. 3. 4.	tietod Mortgagee	د ر
5.	Assignment by Unit Owner or Rights	54
	and Options	<b>J4</b>

ARTICLE VIII NO SEVERANCE OF OWNERSHIP; SUBDIVISION
OF UNITS: FINANCING OF UNITS PURCHASED
BY BOARD

# \$9083237 PAGE 0296

1. 2. 3. 4.	No Severance of Ownership Subdivision of Units Financing of Purchase of Units by Board Payment of Assessments	54 55 56
ARTICLE IX	CONDEMNATION	
1.	Condemnation	57
ARTICLE X	RECORDS	•
1	Records and Audits	59
ARTICLE XI	MISCELLANEOUS	
1. 2. 3. 4. 5.	Invalidity Captions Gender Waiver Chapter 183A	60 60 60
ARTICLE XII	AMENDMENTS TO BY-LAWS	
1. 2. 3.	Amendments to By-Laws Amendment of Rules and Regulations Prohibition on Amendment	61 62 62
ARTICLE XIII	REMOVAL .	
1.	Removal of Condominium from Condominium Law	63
ARTICLE XIV	CONFLICTS	
1_	Conflicts	63

## BOOK 3237 PASE 0297

#### ARTICLE I

CLARK AVENUE ASSOCIATES, INC., a Massachusetts Corporation with its principal place of business located in Northampton,

Massachusetts (hereinafter referred to as the "Sponsor"), by a Master Deed (the "Master Deed") recorded in Hampshire County Registry of Deeds has caused the land and buildings described in said Master Deed situate in Northampton, Massachusetts to be submitted to the provisions of Chapter 183A of the Massachusetts General Laws (the "Condominium Law") and has thereby created a condominium known as CLARK AVENUE CONDOMINIUM (herein the "Condominium"). The term "Registry of Deeds" as used herein shall refer to the Hampshire County Registry of Deeds.

Section 2. The Condominium Association. The Clark

Avenue Condominium Association (the "Condominium Association")

is the organization of unit owners (as defined under the

condominium Law) organized for the administration, operation and

regulation of the Condominium. Each owner of a "Unit" (as

described in the Master Deed) in the Condominium has the same

percentage interest in the

# BUDY 3237 PAGE 0298

Condominium Association as such owner's (herein the "Unit Owner") respective interest in the common areas and facilities (the "Common Elements") of the Condominium all as set forth in the Master Deed, subject, however, to the rights of the owner(s) of units in Phase I to elect one (1) Manager to the Board of Managers, as set fotth in Article II, Section 1 hereof. These "By-Laws" are the By-Laws of the Condominium Association and the undersigned, the first Board of Managers (hereinafter described) of the Condominium Association, hereby execute and record the By-Laws to establish the Condominium Association.

Section 3. Applicability of By-Laws. The provisions of these By-Laws are applicable to the Property of the Condominium and to the use and occupancy thereof. The term "Property" as used herein, has the same meaning as in the Master Deed, and shall include the land of the Condominium addressed as 52-53 Clark Avenue, Northampton, Massachusetts and the buildings thereon (the "Building", as herein and in the Master Deed described) and all other improvements thereon, including the Units and the Common Elements, owned in fee simple absolute, and all easements, rights and appurtenances belonging thereto, and all other property, personal or mixed, intended for use in connection therewith.

All present and future owners, mortgagees, tenants and occupants of Units and their employees, and any other persons who may use the Units and Common elements in any manner are subject to these By-Laws, the Master Deed, and the Rules and Regulations (collectively referred to as the "Condominium Documents") and all covenants, agreements, restrictions, easements and declarations of record

# B-MOX3237 PAGE 0299

("title conditions") pertaining to the Condominium. The acceptance of a Deed of a Unit or the entering into a lease or the act of occupancy of a Unit shall constitute an agreement by a Unit Owner or tenant, and their respective family members, visitors, and servants that the Condominium Documents and the title conditions are accepted, ratified, and will be complied with.

and of the Board of Managers of the Condominium Association shall be located at the principal office of the Condominium or at sich other suitable location convenient to the Unit Owners as may be designated by the Board.

#### ARTICLE II

#### BOARD OF MANAGERS

Managers ("Board) of the Condominium Association shall manage the business and affairs of the Association as provided herein and in the Condominium Law. The First Board of Managers (the "First Board") shall be designated by the Sponsor and shall consist of one (1) Manager who shall serve until the First Election Meeting. DONALD W. TODRIN is hereby appointed as the one (1) Manager of the First Board.

# B-10K3237 PAGE 0300

The Manager of the First Board shall be subject to removal in the manner set forth in Section 2 of this Article and to replacement, in the event of resignation or death, in the manner set forth in Section 3 of this Article.

The First Board shall hold office until the first election meeting of the Unit Owners ("First Election Meeting") which shall be held as a special meeting of Unit Owners, within 30 days after the first to occur of the following: (a) the date on which title to seventy-five percent (75%) of the Units have been conveyed by Sponsor to purchasers unaffiliated with Sponsor or (b) twenty-four (24) months after the date of recording of the Master Deed. At the First Election Meeting the Managers on the First Board shall resign and the Unit Owners shall elect, by a majority in interest, three (3) Managers, each for a term of one year in accordance with the procedure described in the following paragraphs. In the event the Master Deed is amended to include in said Condominium Phase II as described and defined in said Master Deed, then the Unit Owners shall elect, by a majority in interest, five (5) managers, each for a term of one year in accordance with the However, if, procedures described in the following paragraphs. Sponsor owns one or more Units, the Sponsor shall elect and designate one (1) of the Managers, having a two-year term, which Manager shall resign immediately upon the conveyance of all of the Units in the Condominium to purchasers by Sponsor, during said two-year term or at the end of the two-year term, whichever occurs first. In the event

Meeting of Unit Owners, the terms of the Managers elected at the First Election Meeting shall be extended so as to expire on the date of the second Annual Meeting. Any provision of these By-Laws to the contrary notwithstanding, at all times from and after the date of the First Election Meeting, the Owner(s) of the Units of Phase I of the condominium shall have the unrestricted right to elect one (1) of three (3) or five (5) Managers, as the case may be, of the Board of Managers, such election to be made by the owners of Units in Phase I representing a majority of the total interest in common areas and facilities of Phase I.

Each Manager shall hold office until such time as his successor has been duly chosen and qualified.

Section 2. Removal. At any regular or special meeting of Unit Owners, any one or more of the Managers may be removed with or without cause by a majority in interest of the Unit Owners and a successor may then and there or thereafter be elected by vote of a majority in interest of the Unit Owners to fill the vacancy thus created for the remainder of the term, provided, however, that any Manager of the First Board or subsequent Board of Managers designated by the Sponsor may be removed only by the Sponsor and in the Sponsor's sole discretion and without the need for a meeting or vote, and any Manager elected by the Unit Owners of Phase I may be removed by the Unit Owners of Phase I may be removed by Sponsor,

# \$1083237 PAGE 0302

and the Unit Owners of Phase I shall have the right to designate a successor for any such Manager removed by the Unit Owners of Phase I. Any member of the Board elected by Unit Owners and whose removal has been proposed by the Unit Owners shall be given timely notice of the meeting at which his removal shall be considered and an opportunity to be heard at the meeting.

Section 3. Yacancies. Vacancies in the Board of Managers caused by any reason other than the removal of a member

### Bin (3237 PAGE 0303

thereof by vote of the Unit Owners may be filled by the unanimous consent or vote of the remaining Managers at a fegular or special meeting of the Board (held not more than 30 days after any such vacancy arises), and each Manager so elected shall be a member of the Board until the next Annual Meeting, at which time the Unit Owners shall elect a Manager to fill the remainder of the term, if any, provided, however, that any such vacancy arising with respect to a member elected by the Unit Owners of Phase I shall be filled by the Unit Owners of Phase I. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event of the death or resignation of any Manager appointed by Sponsor (including any Manager on the First Board), Sponsor shall appoint a Manager to fill such vacancy, and such Manager shall serve for the unexpired term of the deceased or resigning Manager.

Section 4. Regular Meetings. Regular Meetings of the Board shall be held at the principal office of the Condominium or at such other suitable place convenient to members of the Board and the Unit Owners and at times as shall be determined from time to time by the Board. At least one such meeting, which may be the organizational meeting, shall be held during each fiscal year. Notice of regular meetings of the Board shall be given by the Clerk of the Condominium Association to each Manager by mail or telegraph at least seven (7) business days prior to the day named for such meeting.

Section 5. Special Meetings. Special Meetings of the Board may be called by the President on three (3) business days' notice to each Manager, given by mail or telegraph, or in hand

# Bi:0x3237 PAGE 0304

delivery, which notice shall state the time, place and purpose of the meeting.

any time waive notice of any meeting of the Board in writing and such waiver shall be deemed equivalent to the giving of such notice.

Attendance by a Manager at any meeting of the Board shall constitute a waiver of notice by him of the time and place thereof. If all the Managers are present at any meeting of the Board, no notice shall be required and any business may be transacted at such meeting.

section 7. Quorum of the Board of Managers. With respect to Phase I, two (2) Managers shall constitute a quorum at meetings of the Board; with respect to Phase II, or both Phase I and Phase II, three (3) Managers shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business. The votes of a majority of the Managers present at a meeting at which a quorum is present shall constitute the decision of the Board. If at any meeting of the Board there shall be less than a quorum present, the meeting shall automatically be adjourned to the same time and place one week after the adjourned meeting. At such meeting, if a quorum is present, any business which might have been transacted at the meeting originally called, may be transacted without further notice.

Section 8. <u>Compensation: Fidelity Bonds.</u> No Manager shall receive any compensation for acting as such, unless

such compensation is fixed by the Unit Owners at an Annual or Special Meeting of Unit Owners.

The Board, may in its sole discretion, obtain and maintain fidelity liability bonds or bond coverages protecting the Condominium Association for the loss of fidelity of all Managers and officers and employees of the Condominium Association handling or responsible for Condominium funds, in such amounts as the Board deems reasonably necessary, and the premium on such bonds shall constitute a Common Expense; provided, however, that the Board shall obtain such bonds if required by regulations of any "Secondary Mortgage Market Entities", as defined in the Master Deed in order to comply with their requirements for the granting of mortgages covering Units in the Condominium. All such fidelity bonds and coverages shall name the Condominium Association as the insured and shall require the insurer (a) to give not less than thirty (30) days prior written notice to the Board of any cancellation of such coverages. (b) to deem the Board of Managers to be covered as employees in interpretation of policy coverages.

The Managers shall not be liable to the Unit Owners for any mistake of judgment, negligence, or otherwise, except for their own individual willful misconduct or bad faith. The Unit Owners shall indemnify and hold harmless each of the Managers against all contractual liability to others arising out of contracts made by the

## B-HOK 3237 PAGE 0306

Board on behalf of the Condominium unless any such contract shall have been made in bad faith or contrary to the provisions of the Master Deed, these By-Laws or any other Condominium Document. It is that the Managers shall have no personal liability with respect to any contract made by them on behalf of the Condominium. The First Board, members of which may be affiliated with the Sponsor, shall be able to contract with the Sponsor and affiliated corporations in good faith and upon reasonable terms without being charged with self-dealing. It is also intended that the liability of any Unit Owner arising out of any contract made by the Board or out of the aforesaid indemnity in favor of the Manager shall be limited to such proportion of the total liability thereunder as his interest in the Common Elements bears to the interest of all the Unit Owners in the Common Elements. Every agreement made by the Board shall provide that the Managers or the Condominium Association, as the case may be, are acting only as agent for the Unit Owners (including the Sponsor) and shall have no personal liability thereunder (except as Unit Owners), and that each Unit Owner's liability thereunder shall be limited to such proportion of the total liability thereunder as his interest in the Common Elements bears to the interest of all Unit Owners in the Common Elements.

Section 10. Certification re: Status of Board.

The Clerk of the Condominium Association shall record a Certificate of Incumbency with the Registry of Deeds within fifteen (15) days after the election or removal of members of the Board and promptly

after any vacancy in the Board continues for more than forty-five (45) days. Any instrument signed by a majority of the Board at any time as they appear of record and duly attested as the act of the Condominium Association may be relied upon by all Unit Owners, mortgagees and other parties as conclusively establishing that such instrument was the free act of the Condominium Association and shall be binding upon the Condominium Association. No purchaser, mortgagee, lender or other person dealing with the Board, or their mortgagees as they appear of record, shall be bound to ascertain or inquire further as to the persons who are then members of the Board nor be affected by any notice, implied or actual, relative thereto, other than a recorded certificate thereof, and such recorded certificate shall be conclusive evidence of the members of the Board and of any changes therein.

Any action required or permitted to be taken at any meeting of the Board may be taken without a meeting if all Managers consent to the action in writing and the written consents are filed with the records of the Board. Such consents shall be treated for all purposes as a vote at a meeting.

Section 12. Powers and Duties. The Board shall have the powers and duties necessary for the administration of the affairs of the Condominium and may do all such acts and things except as by law or by the Master Deed or by these By-Laws may not be

# BOOK 3237 PAGE 0308

delegated to the Board by the Unit Owners. Such powers and duties of the Board shall include, but shall not be limited to, the following:

- (a) Operation, care, upkeep and maintenance of the Common Elements, including parking and the use of parking spaces;
- (as herein described) required for the affairs of the Condominium, including without limitation, the operation and maintenance of the Property;
- (including special assessments) from Unit Owners and enforcement of all obligations of the Unit Owners as Unit Owners under the Condominium Documents, and the enforcement of all remedies available in the event of non-payment;
- (d) Employment and dismissal of personnel necessary or advisable for the maintenance and operation of the Common Elements, including engaging of a manager or managing agent and/or superintendent for the Condominium and such other personnel as the Board may deem necessary, convenient or desirable for conducting the business of the Condominium Association, including the right to

# BOT 3237 PAGE 0309

engage counsel, engineers, accountants or other persons or parties to advise the Board or to perform any of its duties hereunder;

- (e) Opening of banking and checking accounts on behalf of the Condominium and designating the signatories required therefor and to make deposits, withdrawals and draw checks on such accounts;
- dealing with the Common Elements including the power to contract, and the right to grant easements or licenses or other permissions over, across, through and under the Common Elements in order to provide or maintain utility services to the Property, provided, however, no such easements or licenses or permissions will be granted underneath existing improvements unless the Board is guaranteed in writing that the existing improvements will not be disturbed or shall be returned to their prior condition by the grantee of the easement;
- encumbering, leasing, and otherwise dealing with Units conveyed to it or acquired by it (or its nominee) as the result of enforcement of the lien arising from Common Expenses, or otherwise;
- (h) Purchasing Units as authorized under the Condominium Documents or required by law;

# B00K3237 PAGE 0310

- (i) Purchasing or otherwise acquiring title to any equipment, tools and items of personal property deemed desirable by the Board;
- (j) Organizing corporations or trusts to act as nominees of the Condominium in acquiring title to or leasing of Units on behalf of all Unit Owners;
- (k) Obtaining casualty and liability insurance with respect to the Property;
- (1) Making repairs, additions, alterations and improvements to the Common Elements in accordance with the other provisions of these By-Laws or of the Master Deed, including maintenance and treatment of the exterior portions of the Buildings;
- (m) Adoption of the Rules and Regulations promulgated by the Board and attached to these By-Laws as Exhibit A hereto and the subsequent adopting, promulgating and amending rules and regulations covering details of the operation and use of the Common Elements;
- (n) Investing and reinvesting monies held by the Condominium Association from time to time as the Board shall

# 8-70×3237 PAGE 0311

deem proper, including the power to invest in all types of securities and other property, without liability for loss even though such investments shall be of a character or in an amount not customarily considered proper for investment of such funds (which for these purposes shall be considered "trust funds") or which does or may not produce income;

(o) Incurring such liabilities, obligations and expenses, and paying from the funds held by the Condominium Association, such sums as they shall deem necessary or proper for the furtherance of the purposes of the Condominium Association;

behalf of the Condominium Association in the exercise of its powers, including, without limitation, litigation brought to enforce the provisions of the Condominium Law, the Master Deed, these By-Laws and the Rules and Regulations, including the power to settle suits brought by or against the Condominium Association and the defense of suits brought against the Condominium Association involving the Common Elements or any other matters and pursuing all remedies available to the Condominium Association hereunder, or at law or both.

# 800K3237 PAGE 0312

Owners, including the power to levy fines against the Unit Owners for violations of the Rules and Regulations established by it to govern the conduct of the Unit Owners. In the case of persistent and continued violations of the Rules and Regulations by a Unit Owner, the Board shall have the power to require such Unit Owner to post a bond to secure adherence to the Rules and Regulations.

suitable or proper for the accomplishment of any of the purposes, the attainment of any of the objects, or the furtherance of any of the powers of the Condominium Association including the right to delegate to any management agent any or all of the duties of the Board hereunder for the term of such agreement.

### ARTICLE III

### UNIT OWNERS

Section 1. Annual Meetings. The first annual meeting of the Condominium Association shall be called at a time to be designated by Sponsor not later than July 13, 1990. Thereafter, Annual Meetings shall be held for on 3rd Wednesday in July in each year.

### BOOK 3237 PASE (1313

Unit Owners shall be held at the principal office of the Condominium or at such other suitable place convenient to the Unit Owners as may be designated by the Board. All meetings of the Unit Owners shall take place at 7:30 p.m.

annual or special meeting, stating the purpose thereof as well as the time and place where it is to be held, shall be served upon each Unit Owner shown on the records of the Condominium at least seven (7) but not more than twenty-one (21) days prior to such meeting. The Clerk shall send, or cause to be sent, notices of all annual or special meetings. Notice of a meeting need not be given to a Unit Owner if a written waiver thereof, executed before or after the meeting by such Unit Owner or his duly authorized attorney, is filed with the records of the meeting.

meeting of Unit Owners cannot be held because a quorum has not attended in person or by proxy, a majority in interest of Unit Owners who are present at such meeting, shall adjourn the meeting to a time not less than 48 hours from the time the original meeting was called. Notice of the time and place of the adjourned meeting shall be posted or caused to be posted by the Clerk in a conspicuous place in the Condominium as notification to Unit Owners.

# 89043237 PAGE 0314

Section 5. Order of Business. The order of business at all meetings of the Unit Owners shall be as determined by the presiding officer.

Section 6. Voting and Other Action by Unit The owner or owners of each Unit (including the Sponsor for Owners. Units owned by Sponsor except as otherwise provided herein and in the Master Deed) either personally or through some person designated by such owner or owners to act as proxy (which person need not be a Unit Owner) shall be entitled to vote the interest appurtenant to such Unit at all meetings of Unit Owners. Such interest must be voted in full and may not be partially voted. The designation of any such proxy shall be made in writing to the Clerk, and shall be revocable at any time by written notice to the Clerk by the Unit Owner so designating. If a Unit is owned by two or more persons, any one of such persons may act for all unless one of such owners objects, in which case the vote attributed to such Unit shall not be counted for any purpose. A fiduciary shall be the voting member with respect to any Unit owned in a fiduciary capacity. Any Unit or Units owned by the Board or its nominee shall not be entitled to a vote and shall be excluded from the total common interests when computing the interest of all other Unit Owners for voting purposes.

The Unit Owners skall transact such business of the Condominium as they may be entitled hereunder or under the Condominium Law, at a duly called meeting, except that any action to

# BOOK 3237 PAGE 0315

be taken by the Unit Owners may be taken without a meeting if all Unit Owners entitled to vote on the matter consent to the action by a writing filed with records of meetings of Unit Owners and with the Clerk of the Condominium Association. Such consent shall be treated for all purposes as a vote at a meeting.

these By-Laws, the terms "majority of Unit Owners" or "majority in interest of Unit Owners" shall mean those Unit Owners (including the Sponsor if the Sponsor owns any Units) having more than 50% of the total authorized votes of all Unit Owners present in person or by total authorized votes of all Unit Owners. As used in these proxy and voting at any meeting of the Unit Owners. As used in these By-Laws any stated percentage of Unit Owners shall mean the percentage in the aggregate of the individual ownership of the Common Elements.

Section 8. Ouorum. Except as otherwise provided in these By-Laws, the presence in person or by proxy of a majority in interest of Unit Owners shall constitute a quorum at all meetings of the Unit Owners.

Section 9. Majority Vote. The vote of a majority in interest of Unit Owners present at a meeting at which a quorum shall be present shall be binding upon all Unit Owners for all

# 83043237 PAGE 0316

purposes except where in the Master Deed or these By-Laws, or under the Condominium Law, a higher percentage vote is required.

### ARTICLE IV

#### **OFFICERS**

of the Condominium Association shall be the President, Treasurer and Clerk, all of whom shall be elected by the Board. The Board may also appoint such other officers as in its judgment may be necessary. The President shall be a member of the Board, but no other officer need be. If the President is absent or disabled, the Clerk shall exercise the powers and perform the duties of the President.

Section 2. Election of Officers. The officers shall be elected annually by the Board (or as necessary to fill vacancies) at the organizational meeting of each new Board and shall hold office at the pleasure of the Board and until their successors are elected. The first officers are as follows:

President:

Donald W. Todrin

Treasurer:

Donald W. Todrin

Clerk:

Donald W. Todrin

affirmative vote of a majority of the members of the Board, any officer may be removed, either with or without cause, and his successor may be elected at any regular meeting of the Board, or any special meeting of the Board called for such purpose.

chief executive officer of the Condominium Association. He shall preside at all meetings of the Unit Owners and of the Board. He shall have all of the general powers and duties which are incident to the office of the President of a corporation organized under the Business Corporation Law of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts, including but not limited to, the power to appoint committees from among the Unit Owners to assist in the conduct of the affairs of the Condominium.

the responsibility for Condominium funds and securities and shall be responsible for keeping full and accurate financial records and books of account showing all receipts and disbursements and for the preparation of all required financial statements. He shall be responsible for the deposit of all monies and other valuable effects in the name of the Board, or the managing agent, in such depositories as may from time to time be designated by the Board, and he shall, in general, perform all the duties incident to the office of Treasurer

# BOOK 3237 PAGE 0318

of a corporation organized under the Business Corporation Law of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts.

minutes of all meetings of the Unit Owners and of the Board and shall in general, perform all duties incident to the office of Clerk of a corporation organized under the Business Corporation Law of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts.

<u>Section 7.</u> <u>Agreements. Contracts. Deeds. Checks.</u>

<u>etc.</u> All agreements, contracts, deeds, leases, checks and other instruments of the Condominium Association shall be executed by the President and payment vouchers shall be approved by the Treasurer, or any managing agent engaged by the Board for such purpose.

Section 8. Compensation of Officers. No officer shall receive any compensation from the Condominium Association or Unit Owners for acting as such.

## BANK3237 PAGE 0319

#### ARTICLE V

#### NOTICES

Section 1. Service of Notice. Whenever under the provisions of the Master Deed or of these By-Laws notice is required to be given to the Board, any Manager or Unit Owner, such notice shall be deemed sufficient and binding upon the service of a written or printed copy thereof to the party entitled thereto by in hand delivery or by mailing the notice in a postage pre-paid envelope to such party at his address as it appears on the records of the Condominium Association, and, if no address appears, to the Unit owned by such party.

Section 2. Waiver. Whenever any notice is required to be given under the provisions of the Master Deed, the Condominium Law, or these By-Laws, a waiver thereof, in writing, signed by the person or persons entitled to such notice, whether before or after the time stated therein, shall be deemed the equivalent thereof.

#### ARTICLE VI

#### OPERATION OF THE PROPERTY

Section 1. Common Expenses and Common Charges.

The Board shall, from time to time, not less than annually, prepare a budget for the Condominium and determine the amount of the common

# \$10K3237 PAGE 0320

expenses (the "Common Expenses") payable by the Unit Owners to defray the costs of operating, maintaining, managing, and administering the Condominium and allocate and assess such Common Expenses among the "Common Charges" according to their respective percentage interests in the Common Elements. The Common Expenses of the Condominium shall include, without limitation, the following: the cost of common water supply and sewer charges; the cost of electricity used in the Common Elements including common lighting costs; cost of repairs, replacements and additions to the Property including the exteriors of the Building; landscaping and common walkway maintenance and snow clearance; maintenance, upkeep and cleaning of Building lobbies, landings and common stairwells; all management fees, costs, expenses and reimbursements paid or payable to any managing agent with whom the Board has contracted; cost of repair of the common heating and hot water supply equipment and system in the Buildings and all gas and electric and other utility .- charges arising therefrom; the cost of service contracts approved by the Board for the supply of services to be performed by the Board; insurance premiums on all policies of insurance required to be or which have been obtained by the Board; salaries, wages and fringe benefits paid to any superintendent or employees of the Condominium; bookkeeping, secretarial, legal and audit expenses of the Condominium Association; all costs associated with the financing of Units acquired by the Condominium Association, if any; all real estate taxes and costs of maintenance, upkeep and repair of such Units; all costs for labor, equipment, material, management or supervision

# B-107-3237 PAGE 0321

arising in connection with the operation and maintenance of the Property and the work and activities of the Condominium Association; and all other items of cost or expenditure which shall be included or specified as part of Common Expenses under the Master Deed of these By-Laws. The Common Expenses, at the election of the Board, may also include, without limitation, sums necessary to provide working capital for the Condominium, & general operating reserve, or a reserve fund for replacement, and any amounts necessary to make up deficits in the Condominium, a general operating reserve, or a reserve fund for replacement, and any amounts necessary to make up deficits in the Condominium budget for Common Expenses for prior years. Common Expenses may also arise from purchase or leasing by the Board, on behalf of all Unit Owners pursuant to the Condominium documents or the acquistiion by the Board of a Unit which is to be sold at a foreclosure or other judicial sale. Anything hereinabove or hereinafter contained to the contrary notwithstanding, no Common Expenses or Common Charges shall be allocated to or assessed against the Unit Owners of Phase I which pertain to, or arise out of, the operation or maintenance of such of the common elements which are dedicated exclusively to, or serve the sole benefit of, the Unit Owners of Phase II, including, without limitation, electriciity, heat, interior repairs and maintenance, water and sewer charges, landscaping and groundskeeping, roof repairs and maintenance, and trash removal. Similarly, no such Common Expenses or Common Charges shall be allocated to or assessed against the Unit Owners of

### 80743237 PAGE (1322

Phase II which pertain to, or arise out of, the operation or maintenance of such of the Common Elements which are dedicated exclusively to, or serve the sole benefit of, the Unit Owners of Phase I. Consistent with the above, any Common Expenses or Common Charges allocable to, or assessed against, the Unit Owners of one phase or the other, shall be allocated to, and/or assessed against the Unit Owners of such Phase according to their respective percentage interests in the Common Elements of such Phase.

The Board shall advise each Unit Owner, promptly in writing, of the amount of Common Charges payable by him and shall furnish copies of each budget on which such Common Charges are based, to all Unit Owners, and, if required, to their "Listed Mortgagee" (as hereinafter defined).

During such periods as the Units of the Condominium are not separately assessed for real estate taxes by governmental authorities having jurisdiction thereof, the Board may assess all or any portion of the real estate taxes applicable to the Condominium as

part of the Common Expenses of the Condominium. The Board may defer the collection of Common Charges applicable to any Unit arising for real estate tax payments whenever and to the extent the taxes applicable to the Unit are being collected by a bank or other institutional first mortgages of said Unit, and may consider such Common Charges satisfied and paid upon payment by the mortgages or amounts so collected to the taxing governmental authority. Each Unit Owner hereby authorizes its respective mortgages to pay all such real estate taxes collected to the Board to be used in payment of such taxes, and authorizes the mortgages to release to the Board information concerning the payment and collection of the tax amounts.

Owners shall be obligated to pay the Common Charges assessed by the Board on the first day of each calendar month in installments equal to 1/12 of the annual Common Charges determined from the budget, or at such other time or times as determined by the Board.

No Unit Owner shall be liable for the payment of any part of the Common Charges assessed against his Unit subsequent to the date of a sale, transfer or other conveyance by him of such Unit. In addition, any Unit Owner may, subject to the terms and conditions specified in these By-Laws, provided that his Unit is free and clear of liens and encumbrances other than the statutory lien for unpaid Common Charges and current real estate taxes, convey his Unit, together with the Appurtenant Interests to the Board and in such

# BURY 3237 PAGE 0324

event be exempt from Common Charges thereafter assessed. A purchaser of a Unit shall be liable for the payment of Common Charges assessed and unpaid against such Unit prior to the acquisition by him of such Unit, except that a purchaser, including a mortgagee at a foreclosure sale of such Unit, shall not be liable for, and such Unit shall not be subject to a lien for the payment of Common Charges assessed prior to the foreclosure sale.

shall assess Common Charges against the Unit Owners, including all special assessments thereof, and shall take prompt action to collect any Common Charges due from any Unit Owner in default. No Unit Owner shall be deemed in default of the obligation to pay Common Charges unless the same remain unpaid for more than fifteen (15) days from the due date for payment thereof.

In the event of default by any Unit Owner in paying the Common Charges assessed by the Board, such Unit Owner shall be obligated to pay interest at the legal rate on such Common Charges from the due date thereof until paid, together with all expenses including attorneys' fees, incurred by the Board in any proceeding brought to collect such unpaid Common Charges. The Board shall have the right and duty to attempt to recover such Common Charges, together with interest thereon, and the expenses of the proceeding including reasonable attorneys' fees (whether or not suit is commenced) in an

### B-19143237 PAGE (1325

action brought against such Unit Owner, or by foreclosure of a lien on such Unit as provided in Section 6 of the Condominium Law.

Charges. In any action brought by the Board to foreclose a lien on a Unit because of unpaid assessments of Common Charges, the Unit Owner shall be required to pay a reasonable rental for the use of his Unit and the plaintiff shall be entitled to an appointment of a receiver to collect the same. The Board, acting on behalf of all Unit Owners, shall have power to purchase such Unit at the foreclosure sale and to acquire, own, hold, lease, mortgage, convey or otherwise deal with the same. A suit to recover a money judgment for unpaid Common Charges shall be maintainable against the defaulting Unit Owner without foreclosing or waiving the lien securing the same and any judgment obtained as a result of such action will remain secured by said lien.

Section 6. Statement of Common Charges. The Board shall promptly provide any Unit Owner, who makes a request in writing, with a written statement of his unpaid Common Charges.

by Unit Owners. The violation of any rule or regulation adopted by the Board or the breach of any of these By-Laws, or the provisions of the Master Deed shall give the Board the right, in addition to any other rights set forth in these By-Laws, to enjoin, abate or remedy

# 8-103337 PAGE 0326

by appropriate legal proceedings, either at law or in equity, the continuance of any such breach. The cost of such legal proceedings shall be borne by the Owners of the offending Unit if the Board shall prevail in such proceedings.

# Section 8. Maintenance and Repairs.

replacements to any Unit, structural or non-structural, ordinary or extraordinary (other than maintenance, repairs and replacements to the Common Elements contained within the Unit boundaries not necessitated by the negligence, misuse or neglect of the owner of such Unit), including maintenance, repairs, and replacements to broken windows, glass, electrical, plumbing, air conditioning and heating fixtures and equipment serving solely the Unit, shall be made at the Unit Owner's sole cost and expense, except as otherwise specifically provided herein.

Section 1, all maintenance, repairs and replacements to the Common Elements, whether located inside or outside of the Units, including, common electrical, plumbing, heating, hot water supply and utility fixtures serving two or more Units of the Condominium in common, periodic painting or other treatment of the exteriors of the Buildings and other Common Elements, and all repair and upkeep of all walkways, Building stairs,

# 30013237 PAGE C327

entrances, lobbies, landings, stairwells, elevators, access ways, entries and public areas, and all lawn care and landscaping work shall be performed by the Board and shall be charged to all the Unit owners as a Common Expense. However, to the extent that such maintenance, repairs and replacements are necessitated by the negligence, misuse or neglect of a Unit Owner, such expense shall be charged to such Unit Owner. The Condominium Association shall install light bulbs in the lighting sockets in the Common Elements, both inside and outside the Building.

Regulations. In order to provide for congenial use and occupancy of the Property and for the protection of the values of the Units, the use of the Units and the Common Elements shall be restricted as set forth in the Master Deed, these By-Laws and the Rules and Regulations, as the same may hereafter be amended or modified from time to time.

against the Unit Owners for violations of rules and regulations established to govern the conduct of the Unit Owners. In the case of persistent violation of the rules and regulations by a Unit Owner, the Board shall have the power to require such Unit Owner to post a bond or cash deposit to secure adherence to the Rules and Regulations.

# 5-1043237 PAGE 0328

Section 10. Improvements to Common Elements. The following provisions shall govern improvements to the Common Elements:

- (a) If fifty percent (50%) more in interest but less than seventy-five percent (75%) in interest of the Unit Owners of either Phase I or Phase II agree to make an improvement to the Common Elements, which are dedicated exclusively to, or serve the sole benefit of, their respective Phase, the cost of such improvements shall be borne solely by the Unit Owners of the Phase so agreeing.
- (b) Seventy-five percent (75%) or more in interest of the Unit Owners of either Phase I or II may agree to make an improvement to the Common Elements, which are dedicated exclusively to, or serve the sole benefit of, their respective Phase and assess the cost thereof to the Unit Owners of such Phase as a Common Expense, but if such improvements shall cost in excess of ten percent (10%) of the then value of the Condominium, any Unit Owner of such Phase not so agreeing may apply to the Superior Court of the County, on such notice to the Board as the Court shall direct, for an order directing the purchase of his Unit by the Board at fair market value thereof as approved by the Court. The cost of any such purchase shall be a Common Expense of the Phase of the Condominium with respect to which such improvement is being made.
- (c) If fifty percent (50%) more in interest but less than seventy-five percent (75%) in interest of the Unit Owners of both Phases I and II agree to make an improvement to the Common

## Book 3237 PASE (1329)

Elements, the cost of such improvements shall be borne solely by the Unit Owners so agreeing.

Unit Owners of both Phases I and II may agree to make an improvement to the Common Elements and assess the cost thereof to all Unit Owners as a Common Expense, but if such improvements shall cost in excess of ten percent (10%) of the then value of the Condominium, any Unit Owner not so agreeing may apply to the Superior Court of the County, on such notice to the Board as the Court shall direct, for an order directing the purchase of his Unit by the Board at a fair market value thereof as approved by the Court. The cost of any such purchase shall be a Common Expense of the Condominium.

Section 11. Right of Access. Each Unit Owner shall grant a right of access into his Unit to the Board and any person authorized by the Board, the Manager, or the Managing Agent to make inspections, and to correct any conditions originating in his Unit or threatening another Unit or the Common Elements, and to make repairs, replacements and improvements to the Common Elements, or

## Book 3237 PAGE 0330

portions thereof, which are unsightly, a nuisance or pose any danger to persons or property, provided that requests for such entries are made not less than twenty-four (24) hours in advance and that any such entry is at a time reasonably convenient to the Unit Owner and scheduled to take place, if possible, in the presence of the Unit Owner. In case of any emergency such right of entry shall be immediate, whether the Unit Owner is present at the time or not. In the event of the exercise of the right of access provided in this Section 11, all costs for repairs (including repairs of damage caused by such entry) shall be borne in accordance with the provisions of Section 8 of this Article VI.

Section 12. Electricity. Electricity will be supplied directly to the Units through separate meters and each Unit Owner shall be required to pay the bills for electricity consumed or used in his Unit directly to the Utility Company. The electricity serving the common elements of each Phase shall be separately metered and the Board shall pay all bills for electricity consumed in the Common Elements as a Common Expense of each respective Phase.

Section 13. Water Charges and Sewer Rents. Water shall be supplied to all of the Units and the Common Elements through one or more building meters and the Board shall pay, as a Common Expense, all charges for water consumed on the Condominium property, together with all related sawer rents arising therefrom, promptly after the bills are rendered, except that any Unit Owners in Phase I who have separate meters for water shall pay the charges therefor directly to the billing authority, and shall not be assessed for any portion of the Common Expense thereof. In the event of a proposed sale of a

## 800 C 3237 PAGE (1331

Unit by the Unit Owner, the Board of Managers, on request of the selling Unit Owner, shall execute and deliver to the purchaser of such Unit or to the purchaser's title insurance company, a letter agreeing to pay all charges for water and sewer rents affecting the property as of the date of closing of title to such Unit promptly after such charges shall have been billed by the City Collector.

Insurance. The Board shall obtain and Section 14. maintain to the extent reasonably obtainable policies of insurance providing coverage for property owned by the Unit Owners in common, for liability exposures of the Condominium Association and the Unit in common, and for fidelity losses of the Condominium Association, all from insurance companies licensed to do business in the Commonwealth of Massachusetts. The insurance policy or policies Property Insurance: The Board shall shall be as follows: (a) purchase and maintain an insurance policy or policies covering all real and personal property owned by the Condominium Association and the Unit Owners in common, insuring the Property, including the Common Elements, the Buildings and all of the Units (including, without limitation, interior partitions, Unit boundary walls and the like) and all of the fixtures installed therein as of the date of recording of the Master Deed, but not including drapes, furniture, furnishings and personal property contained in the Unit.

Conditions of Coverage shall be as follows:

#### BINK3237 PAGE 0332

- (i) The named insured shall include the Condominium Association, the Board, the Unit Owners, the Managers, and the managing agent, as their respective interest may appear;
- (ii) The perils covered shall be fire and extended coverage;
- (iii) "All Risk or Risks of Physical Loss", or its equivalent, type coverage when available at a reasonable cost;
- (iv) Flood coverage, if the Condominium or any part is located in a federally designated flood hazard zone or if the Board determines it advisable;
- (v) Boiler and machinery coverages, if the Board determines it advisable;
- (vi) The amount of coverage shall be adequate to provide for replacement cost for property insured;
- (vii) Replacement Cost coverage;

## B9943237 PAGE 0333

- (viii) An Agreed Amount Clause, or its equivalent;
  - (ix) That this coverage will be primary in the settlement of all losses covered;
  - (x) Waiver of subrogation by and between insureds, and their respective agents, servants, employees, guests, invitees and customers;
  - (xi) A minimum 30-day cancellation provision to the named insureds and named mortgagees, if any;
  - (xii) That the coverage and conditions, including Replacement Cost, shall not be jeopardized by the insured's compliance with the Condominium Law with respect to obtaining consent from Unit Owners and/or mortgagees to repair or restore property damaged;
- (xiii) Loss shall be adjusted by, and payable to, the Board as trustee for all insureds and their mortgagees, and in accordance with the Condominium Law and these By-Laws;
- (xiv) Mortgagees shall be given evidence, upon written request, that their interest is

## 8001:3237 PAGE 0334

recorded on such insurance policies, consistent with these By-Laws;

- insurance for their own Unit(s), including, but not limited to, drapes, improvements, betterments, furniture, and other personal property contained in their Units; the insurance policies shall acknowledge that the Condominium Association's policies are to be considered as Primary Coverage in the adjustment of an insured loss;
- (xvi) Such other conditions as the Board from time to time shall deem to be to the benefit of the Condominium Association.
- and maintain Liability Insurance Coverage, which will protect the Condominium Association, and its Board, officers, and the managing agent, from claims which may arise out of, or result from, the use and occupancy of the Common Elements, and the land, structures and improvements comprising the Common Elements, by any person or as a result of the acts or failures of any employee, officer or manager of the Condominium Association, or any managing agent, or any party for whose conduct the Condominium Association may be responsible,

## 30% 3237 PAGE 0335

wherever such conduct shall occur. Insurance coverage shall include, unless otherwise noted, but not be limited to, protection from the following:

- (i) Claims under worker's compensation, disability benefits, and other similar employee benefit acts;
- (ii) Claims for damages because of bodily injury, occupational sickness or disease, or death of the Condominium Association's employees;
- (iii) Claims for damages because of bodily injury, sickness or disease, or death of any person other than the Condominium Association's employees;
  - (iv) Claims for damages insured by the usual personal injury liability coverages which are sustained by,
    - (1) any person as a result of an offense directly or indirectly related to the employment of such person by the Condominium Association, or by,

#### 300K3237 PAGE 0336

- (2) any other person;
- (v) Claims for damages because of injury to, or destruction of, tangible property, including loss of use resulting therefrom;
- (vi) Claims for damages because of bodily injury, death or property damage arising out of the ownership, maintenance, or use of any motor vehicle;
- (vii) Claims for breach of fiduciary duty of a member of the Board.

Conditions of Coverage for all liability policies, except those specifically protecting the Condominium Association and its Board for breach of fiduciary duty, shall be as follows:

- (1) Named Insureds shall include the Condominium Association, its Board, it Managers, officers and managing agent;
- (2) Additional Insureds shall be the Unit Owners;

## ##^<3237 PAGE 0337

- Limits of liability shall be determined from time to time by the Board (but not less than One Million Dollars (\$1,000,000) per occurrence;
- (4) All insurance policies shall be placed with a company or companies acceptable to the Board;
- (5) Insurer shall not have rights of subrogation against any Named Insured and/or Additional Insured;
- specifically requiring the insurance company to notify the Condominium Association in writing, not less than thirty (30) days prior to cancellation of any or all coverages;
- certificates of insurance, to be delivered, if requested, to any member of the Board and any unit Owner or named mortgagee indicating all coverages contained in policies purchased, and continuing evidence of such coverage annually, also if requested;

#### 84443237 PAGE 0338

(8) That additional conditions may be added from time to time, as the Board deems advisable.

Conditions of Coverage for policies, specifically protecting the Condominium Association and its Board for breach of fiduciary duty, shall be as follows:

- (1) The Named Insured shall be the Condominium Association and its Board and officers.
- (2) If the policy contains a recourse provision, then the insurer shall waive such provision at the request of the Board, or shall make available to the Board, coverage protecting the Board members from such recourse.
- (3) That additional conditions may be included, as determined by the Board from time to time.

The Condominium Association, its agents, servants, employees, and invitees and the Unit Owners, and their agents, servants, employees, and guests and invitees, to the extent permitted by law, hereby, waive their rights of subrogation, each as against the other, to the extent such property loss, or liability claim, is

covered by insurance purchased by the Condominium Association, or by the Unit Owners.

Subject to the provisions of Section 15 of this Article VI, insurance proceeds received by the Board shall be held in trust in an identified and segregated fund for the benefit of the Unit Owners and named mortgagees. If the cost of restoring the Common Elements is estimated by the Board to exceed the sum of Thirty Thousand Dollars (\$30,000), then the Board shall give written notice of such loss to all "Listed Mortgagees" (as defined in Article VII below), and, in addition, if the cost of restoration of any Unit is estimated by the Board to exceed Eight Thousand Dollars (\$8,000), then the Board shall give written notice of such loss to the Listed Mortgagee holding the mortgage on the Unit.

All losses covered by any insurance carried by the Board shall be adjusted by the Board in good faith, and shall be payable to the Board to be held in trust and disbursed as provided herein or as provided under the Condominium Law.

Unit Owners may carry contents insurance and any other insurance covering perils and matters not covered by the Insurance acquired by the Board provided that all such policies shall contain waivers of subrogation and further provided that such policies shall specifically acknowledge that the insurance obtained by the Board is to be considered as "primary coverage" in the adjustment of an

## B-1033237 PAGE 0340

insured loss and that the liability of the carriers issuing insurance obtained on behalf of the Board shall not be affected or diminished by reason of any such additional insurance carried by any Unit Owner.

Repair or Reconstruction After Fire or Section 15. In the event of damage to or destruction of the Other Casualty. Common Elements as a result of fire or other casualty (unless the casualty exceeds 10% of the value of the Condominium prior to the casualty and if at least 75% of the Unit Owners do not agree to proceed with the repair or restoration as provided in Subsection (a) of this Section) or in the event of damage to or destruction of any Unit as a result of fire or other casualty, whether or not the Common Elements have been damaged or destroyed, the Board shall collect in trust the insurance proceeds payable on account of such damage or destruction, shall promptly adjust for the loss, contract for the prompt repair or restoration of the same, and disburse the proceeds of all insurance policies in payment of all costs and expenses actually incurred in connection with such repair or restoration in appropriate progress payments and with appropriate retainage. All insurance proceeds paid to the Board as trustees on account of any casualty shall be dedicated solely to the repair or restoration of the loss, and any application of said proceeds by the Board on account thereof shall be prior to the application of such proceeds for any other purposes.

## 80% GL37 MG 0341

estimated on the basis of an independent appraisal or as determined during the course of repair or restoration and the Board shall assess, levy or charge all Unit Owners, as a Common Expense, the amount estimated to repair or restore in excess of the insurance available thereof.

Whenever the estimated cost or repair or restoration exceeds as to any one casualty or occurrence, on the basis of an independent appraisal, the sum of Thirty Thousand Dollars (\$30,000) with respect to the Common Elements and Eight Thousand Dollars (\$8,000) with respect to any one Unit, the Board shall retain a registered architect or registered engineer, who shall not be directly or indirectly a Unit Owner or an employee or agent of any member of the Board or the Condominium, to supervise the work of repair or restoration and no sums shall be paid by the Board on account of such repair or restoration except upon certification to it by such architect or engineer that the work for which payment is being made has been completed in a good and workmanlike manner in accordance with approved plans and specifications and that the estimated total cost of completion of said repair or restoration, less amounts theretofore advanced, does not exceed the undisbursed proceeds of insurance as augmented by funds obtained by any assessment or assessments levied or chargeable to the Unit Owners as a Common Expense or to the owners of Units damaged or destroyed.

## 8-1043237 PAGE 0342

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Board may perform emergency work essential to the preservation and safety of the property or the safety of persons, or required to avoid the suspension of any essential service to the Property, without having first engaged an architect or engineer, adjusted the loss or obtained proceeds of insurance.

pursuant to the foregoing and the amount of insurance proceeds shall have exceeded the cost of such repair or restoration, then such excess of insurance proceeds, if any, shall be added to the Condominium's reserve fund, if any, or, at the option of the Board, divided among and paid to all the Unit Owners (and their mortgages as their interests may appear) in proportion to their respective interest in the Common Elements.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, if as a result of fire or other casualty the cost of repair or restoration exceeds 10% of the value of the Condominium prior to the casualty, and:

(a) If at least 75% in interest of the Unit Owners do not agree within 120 days after the date of the casualty to proceed with repair or restoration, the Condominium, including all Units, shall be subject to partition at the suit of any Unit Owner. Such suit shall be subject to dismissal at any time prior to entry of an order to sell if an appropriate agreement to rebuild is filed.

## B-1013237 PAGE 0343

The net proceeds of the partition sale together with any common funds shall be divided in proportion to the Unit Owners' respective undivided comership in the Common Elements and paid to such Unit Owners and their mortgagees, as their respective interests may appear. Upon such sale, the Condominium shall be deemed removed from the provisions of the Condominium Law.

agree to proceed with the necessary repair or restoration, the cost of the rebuilding of the Condominium, in excess of any available common funds including the proceeds of any insurance, shall be a Common Expense, provided, however, that if such excess cost exceeds ten percent (10%) of the value of the Condominium prior to the casualty, any Unit Owner who did not so agree may apply to the Superior Court of the County on such notice to the Board as the Court shall direct, for an order directing the purchase of his Unit by the Board at the fair market value thereof as approved by the Court. The cost of such purchase shall be a Common Expense of the Condominium.

Section 16. Additions. Alterations or Improvements by Unit Owners. Except as provided in Articles IV and VI of the Master Deed with respect to Phase I, no structural addition, alteration or improvements shall be made in or to a Unit without obtaining the prior written consent of the Board and, where the safety or soundness of a Building or Unit may be in jeopardy, the unanimous consent of all Unit Owners. No alteration, addition, improvement, painting, staining or change may be made by any Unit Owner affecting the exterior

## 80033237 PAGE 0344

architectural design, appearance, material, color, or condition of the Building or the Common Elements without the prior written consent of the Board except as otherwise permitted in Article XIII of the Master Deed or under the Condominium Laws.

The Board shall answer any written request by a Unit Owner for required approvals hereunder within thirty (30) days after such request, and failure to do so within the stipulated time shall constitute a consent by the Board to the proposed addition, Any application to any governmental alteration or improvement. authority for a permit to make such addition, alteration or improvement may, if the Board so elects, be executed by the Board only, without however, incurring any liability on the part of the Board to any contractor, subcontractor, or materialman on account of such addition, alteration or improvement, or to any person having any claim for injury to persons or damage to property arising therefrom. Except where the soundness or safety of a building may be jeopardized, this Section shall not apply to Units owned by the Sponsor until such Units shall have been initially conveyed by the Sponsor to third party purchasers and shall not apply to the construction work rights reserved by Sponsor in Article XXII of the Master Deed.

Except as otherwise provided herein or permitted by the Board, a Unit Owner performing any work, construction or improvements in the Unit, or in the Building or any other work which affects or

#### 80%3237 PAGE 0345

involves the Common Elements or the exterior appearance or features of the Building shall: (a) secure all appropriate licenses and permits necessary for such work at Unit Owner's sole cost and expense; (b) provide appropriate insurances insuring the said Unit Owner, the Board of Managers and other occupants of the Units and the Condominium against personal injury and property damage arising out of or in connection with said work; (c) perform all construction work in a good and workmanlike manner and in compliance with all applicable laws and ordinances, regulations and orders of governmental authorities having jurisdiction thereof and the insurers of the Condominium; and (e) diligently monitor all such work to completion.

Section 17. Examination of Books. Each Unit Owner and each mortgages of a Unit shall be permitted to examine the books of account of the Condominium and the records of the Condominium described in Article X hereof at reasonable times on business days.

#### ARTICLE VII

#### MORTGAGES

Section 1. Notice to Board. A Unit Owner who mortgages his Unit shall notify the Board of the name and address of his mortgagee and shall file a conformed copy of the mortgage with

#### 80043237 PAGE 0346

the Board. The Board shall cause such information to be maintained in a book entitled "Mortgages of Units".

Section 2. Notice to Unpaid Common Charges. The Board, whenever so requested in writing by a mortgagee of a Unit, shall promptly report or cause to be reported any then unpaid Common Charges due from, or any other default by, the owner of the mortgaged Unit.

Section 3. Notice of Default. When a Unit Owner is given notice of a default in paying any assessments of Common Charges, or other default, the Board shall send, or cause to be sent, a copy of such notice to the Listed Mortgagees of such Unit.

By-Laws, "Listed Mortgagee" shall mean a mortgagee holding a mortgage of record on a Unit of which the Unit Owner affected or such mortgagee has given the Board written notice, specifying the address to which notices are to be sent in all instances to a Listed Mortgagee by the Board. Such mortgagee shall remain a Listed Mortgagee until the Board receives written notice from the mortgagee of withdrawal of the listing or the mortgage is discharged of record. Any mortgagee of Sponsor who shall have subordinated its mortgage to the Condominium Documents is automatically a Listed Mortgagee.

Section 5. Assignment by Unit Owner or Rights and Options. The right of any Unit Owner to vote to grant or withhold any consent, and to exercise any other right or option herein granted to a Unit Owner, may be assigned or transferred in writing to or restricted in favor of any Listed Mortgagee, and the Board shall be bound by any such assignment or transfer upon notice in writing to the Board by a Listed Mortgagee setting forth the terms of such assignment.

#### ARTICLE VIII

# NO SEVERANCE OF OWNERSHIP: SUBDIVISION OF UNITS: FINANCING OF UNITS PURCHASED BY BOARD

Section 1. No Severance of Ownership. No Unit Owner shall execute any deed, mortgage, or other instrument conveying or mortgaging title to his Unit without including therein the "Appurtenant Interests" to the Unit, it being the intention hereof to prevent any severance of such combined ownership. For purposes of these By-Laws, the term "Appurtenant Interests" means the following: the (a) undivided interest in the Common Elements appurtenant to the respective Unit; (b) the interest of the Unit Owners of such Unit in any Unit acquired by the Board, or its designee, on behalf of all Unit Owners, or the proceeds of the sale or lease thereof, if any; (c) the interest of such Unit Owners in any other assets of the Condominium; (d) membership of the Unit Owners of the Unit in the

#### 800%3237 PACE 0348

Condominium Association, and (e) all easements of exclusive use of the common areas and facilities of the Condominium appurtehant to said Unit. Any deed, mortgage or other instrument purporting to affect the Unit or one or more of the Appurtenant Interests, without including the Unit and all such interests, shall be deemed and taken to include the interest or interests so omitted, even though the latter shall not be expressly mentioned or described therein. No part of the Appurtenant Interests of any Unit may be sold, transferred or otherwise disposed of, except as part of a sale, transfer or other disposition of the Unit to which such interests are appurtenant, or as part of a sale, transfer or other disposition of such part of the Appurtenant Interests of all Units.

subdivided into two or more Units and the percentage interest appurtenant to any Unit shall not be adjusted to accomplish such subdivision unless pursuant to an amendment of the Master Deed consented to by all of the Unit Owners of the Condominium and their respective mortgagees, if any, with the express exception as noted in Article IV (Description of Building) and Article VI (Modifications, etc. of Clark Avenue Condominium Phased Master Deed.

Section 3. Financing of Purchase of Units by Board. Acquisition of Units by the Board may be made from the working capital in the hands of the Board, or if such funds are

## 300%3237 PAGE 0349

insufficient and the Unit Owners owning one-hundred (100%) percent in interest in the Common Elements consent thereto, the Board may levy a special assessment against each Unit Owner in proportion to his ownership in the Common Elements, as a Common Expense, assessment shall be enforceable as provided in Article VI. The Board may borrow money to finance acquisition of a Unit without the consent of the Unit Owners when such acquisition is required under the Condominium Law; however, in all other cases in which the Board acquires a Unit, it may not borrow money for such purposes unless so authorized by Unit Owners owning not less than one-hundred (100%) percent in common interest. No such Unit financings by the Board may be secured by an encumbrance or hypothecation of any property other than the Unit, together with the Appurtenant Interests, so to be acquired by the Board. All costs of obtaining financing for the acquisition of the Unit and for the repayment of monies borrowed for such purposes, including, principal and interest, shall be Common Expenses of the Condominium and payable by Unit Owners by assessments of Common Charges.

Owner shall be permitted to convey, mortgage, pledge, hypothecate, sell or lease his Unit unless and until he has paid in full to the Board all unpaid assessments of Common Charges assessed against his Unit and until he shall have satisfied all unpaid liens against such Unit, except the lien of any mortgage upon such Unit.

#### ARTICLE IX

#### CONDEMNATION

Section 1. Condemnation. If more than ten percent in value of the condominium is taken under the power of eminent domain, the taking shall be treated as a "casualty loss", and the provisions of Section 17 of the Condominium Law and Section 15 of Article VI of these By-Laws shall apply. Where one or more Units have been substantially altered or rendered uninhabitable as a result of a partial taking, and the Unit Owners vote to restore and continue the Condominium pursuant to Section 17 of the Condominium Law, the Board shall have the authority to acquire the remaining portions of such Units for such price as the Board shall determine, provided that any Unit Owner (including the Sponsor as to Units owned by the Sponsor) of such remaining portion who does not agree with such determination may apply to the Superior Court of the County on such notice to the Board as the Court shall direct, for an order directing the purchase of such remaining portion at the fair market value thereof as approved by the Court. Where as a result of partial taking any Unit is decreased in size or where the number of Units is decreased by a partial taking, then the Board may make such provisions for realignment of the percentage interest in the Common Elements as shall be just and equitable and shall be consented to in writing by the Unit Owners owning one-hundred (100%) percent in interest in the Condominium and shall record an amendment to the

Master Deed after notice to the Unit Owners and Listed Mortgagess reflecting the new percentage interest, whereupon such newly specified percentage interests shall become appurtenant to the Units stipulated and shall for all purposes and in all respects replace the prior appurtenant percentage interests.

In the event of any taking under the power of eminent domain, the Unit Owners shall be represented by the Condominium Association acting through the Board, and the Board shall have the power to apply for, prosecute, settle and otherwise pursue, obtain and collect any damage awards payable as a result of said taking. In the event of a partial taking, the award payable with respect to the Condominium shall be allocated to the respective Unit Owners or their mortgagees, as their respective interest may appear, in accordance with their respective percentage interest in the Common Elements, except as to such portion or portions of the award which are attributable to direct or consequential damages suffered by particular Units as determined by the Court, which shall be payable to the owners of such Units or their mortgagees, as their respective interests may appear. In the case of a total taking of all Units and the Common Elements, the entire award shall be payable to the Board to be distributed to the Unit Owners or their mortgagees, as their respective interests may appear, in accordance with their respective percentage interest in the Common Elements.

## BAG 3237 PAGE 0352

## ARTICLE X

#### RECORDS

Records and Audits. managing agent shall keep detailed records of the actions of the Board, minutes of the meetings of the Board, and minutes of the meetings of the Unit Owners. The Board shall keep and maintain the financial records and books of account of the condominium, including a chronological listing of receipts and expenditures, as well as a separate account for each Unit, which among other things, shall contain the amount of each assessment of Common Expenses against such Unit, the date when due, the amounts paid thereon, and the balance remaining unpaid. A written report, summarizing all receipts and expenditures of the Condominium, shall be rendered by the Board to all Unit Owners who so request at least quarter-annually. An annual report of the receipts and expenditures of the Condominium, certified by an independent certified public accountant, shall be rendered or caused to be rendered by the Board to all Unit Owners and to mortgagees who have requested the same promptly after the end of each Copies of the Condominium Documents, site plan and floor plans recorded with the Master Deed, as the same may be amended from time to time, shall be maintained at the office of the Board and shall be available for inspection by Unit Owners, their authorized agents and Listed Mortgagees during reasonable business hours.

# ARTICLE XI MISCELLANEOUS

Section 1. Invalidity. The invalidity of any part of these By-Laws shall not impair or affect in any manner the validity, enforceability or effect of the balance of these By-Laws.

Section 2. Captions. The captions herein are inserted only as a matter of convenience and for reference, and in no way define, limit or describe the scope of these By-Laws, or the intent of any provisions thereof.

Section 3. Gender. The use of the masculine gender in these By-Laws shall be deemed to include the feminine gender and the use of the singular shall be deemed to include the plural, whenever the context so requires.

Section 4. Waiver. No restriction, condition, obligation, or provision contained in these By-Laws shall be deemed to have been abrogated or waived by reason of any failure to enforce the same, irrespective of the number of violations or breaches thereof which may occur.

Section 5. Chapter 183A. All references in these By-Laws to Chapter 183A of the General Laws of Massachusetts or to

#### \$4043237 PAGE 0354

the "Condominium Law" shall be to said Chapter 183A as amended to the date of recording of the Master Deed creating the Condominium.

#### ARTICLE XII

#### AMENDMENTS TO BY-LAWS

Amendments to By-Laws. These By-Laws Section 1. may be modified or amended by: (a) the written approval of Unit Owners owing 75% or more (or if such modification or amendment affects a provision then requiring a larger percentage, such larger percentage) in common interest to such modification or amendment or (b) the vote of 75% percent or more (or if such modification or amendment affects a provision then requiring a larger percentage, such larger percentage) in common interest at a meeting of Unit Owners duly held for such purpose, provided that no such amendment shall be effective unless and until approved by the Board in writing (which may be indemnified to their reasonable satisfaction against outstanding obligations or liabilities which will, can or may result from said amendment) and recorded with the Registry of Deeds; provided, however, that no such amendment or modification shall: (a) render these By-Laws to be contrary to or inconsistent with any provisions of the Condominium Law, or the Master Deed, or to any other provisions of these By-Laws; or (b) eliminate, change, impair, or otherwise adversely affect any rights of "first mortgagees" as defined and described in Article XXIII of the Master Deed, without the prior written consent of all then existing first mortgagees; or

(c) eliminate, change, impair, or otherwise adversely affect any special rights of Sponsor (i.e., those not appertaining generally to all Unit Owners) contained in the Master Deed and herein, unless first consented to in writing by Sponsor or (d) be effective with respect to any matters as to which amendment is restricted or prohibited under this Article, unless the provisions applicable thereto are first complied with. Such instrument, so executed and recorded, shall be conclusive evidence of the existence of all facts and of compliance with all prerequisites to the validity of such amendment or modification, whether stated in such instrument or not, upon all questions as to title or affecting the right of third persons and for all other purposes.

Section 2. Adoption and Amendment of Rules and Regulations.

Unit owners may adopt, modify and amend rules and regulations for the Condominium Association, provided that the same are adopted or ratified or amended by the unit owners in the same manner as provided for amendment of these By-Laws.

Section 3. Prohibitions on Amendment.

For as long as the Sponsor remains the owner of any Unit in the Condominium, these By-Laws may not be amended so as to limit or modify Sponsor's rights with respect to the appointment of members of the First Board and the terms of their service set forth in these By-Laws without Sponsor's written consent.

## 100 C3237 PAGE C356

#### ARTICLE XIII

#### REMOVAL

Condominium Law. The Condominium shall not be removed from the provisions of the Condominium Law except in compliance with the procedure therefor established in Section 19 of Chapter 183A, but the instrument removing the Condominium from the Condominium Law must be consented to by the Unit Owners of one hundred percent of the common areas and facilities of the Condominium, and their respective mortgagees.

#### ARTICLE XIV

#### CONFLICTS

Section 1. Conflicts. These By-Laws are set forth to comply with the requirements of the Chapter 183A of the Massachusetts General Laws and the Master Deed recorded in the Registry of Deeds, as it may be amended. In case any of these By-Laws conflict with the provisions of said statute or the Master Deed, the provisions of said statute, or the Master Deed, as the case may be, shall control.

Executed under seal this 19th day of August, 1988,

3.7 NOT 17 PAGE 0357

by the undersigned First Board of Managers of Clark Avenue Condominium Association.

HAMPSH	IRE,	SS.
--------	------	-----

Then personally appeared the above-named, DONALD W. TODRIN, the member of the First Board of Managers of CLARK AVENUE CONDOMINIUM ASSOCIATION, and acknowledged the foregoing. instrument to be his free act and deed, as Manger, before me.

> LUANET R. SMARGIE, Notagy Public My commission expites: December 9, 1994.

Fifty-Two/Fifty-Three Clark Avenue Associates, Inc. referred to in the Master Deed as the "Sponsor", by the execution below hereby consents to and joins in the within By-Laws for the purpose of establishing the Clark Avenue Condominium Association, but for no other purpose.

> Fifty-Two/Fifty-Three Clark Avenue Associates, Inc.

DONALD W. TODRIN, President and Treasurer

#### COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS

HAMPSHIRE, SS.

Then personally appeared the above-Hamed, DONALD W. TODRIN, President and Treasurer and acknowledged the foregoid instrument to be the free act and deed of Fifty-Two/Fifty-Tr Clark Avenue Associates, Inc., as Sponser, before me.

> JANET R. SMARGIE, Notary Public My commission expires: December 9, 1994

Hampshire 88.	ج 1988ء	ato'clock and	108 minutes	) ∠M., Rec'd,	ent'd and
(MONTH)	mpshire Reg	of Deeds, Book.	3 <u>23 7</u> Page 5	294	-,
	_ • - <u>-</u>	·	Attest	REALSTER	